
CITY OF BRUNSWICK 
601 Gloucester Street * Post Office Box 550 * Brunswick * Georgia * 31520-0550 * (912) 267-5500 * Fax (912) 267-5549 

Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor           City Attorney 
Felicia M. Harris, Mayor Pro Tem          Brian D. Corry 
Kendra L. Rolle, Commissioner 
Lance Sabbe, Commissioner               City Manager 
Gwen Atkinson-Williams, Commissioner     Regina M. McDuffie 

AGENDA 
*** 

BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2024 AT 6:00 P.M. 

1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 
& 

STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 
https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 

CALL TO ORDER **INVOCATION **PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1. Adoption September 18, 2024, Regular Scheduled Meeting Agenda.
APPOINTMENT(S)
2. Board:

1) Tree Board – One Appointment
PUBLIC HEARING – NEW ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE(S) (A. Brown) 
3. 

New Alcohol License(s) 
Name of Business Business Owner/Manager Business Address Permit Type 
H & H Mini Mart Owner: Mitulkumar Patel 1603 L Street Retail sale of beer and wine 

UPDATE(S) 
4. Permitting Process.
5. Economic Development Department.
6. Transit. (J. Hunter)
ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL
6. Consider Approval of September 4, 2024, Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes and September 9, 2024 

Special Called Meeting.  (subject to any necessary charges.) (N. Atkinson)  Encl. 1
7. Consider Approval of Financial Reports as of July 31, 2024.  (R. McDuffie)  Encl. 2
8. Consider Approval of Resolution for the Georgia Department of Transportation/Federal Transit 

Administration 5307 FY 26 Transit Funding Application.   (J. Hunter)  Encl. 3
CITY ATTORNEY’S ITEM(S) 
8. Consider Approval of an Easement with Georgia Ports Authority.
EXECUTIVE SESSION

Encl. 4

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


Page 2 
September 18, 2024 
Brunswick City Commission Agenda 

“Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have 
questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Coordinator Rick Charnock at 912-267-5572 or email 
rcharnock@cityofbrunswick-ga.gov .  Please give at least 48 hours’ notice to allow the city to make reasonable accommodations for those persons(s).” 

mailto:rcharnock@cityofbrunswick-ga.gov


  

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 4, 2024 

 AT 6:00 P.M.  
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 
 
PRESENT:  Honorable Mayor Cosby Johnson, Mayor Pro Tem Felicia Harris,  
                       Commissioner Kendra Rolle, Commissioner Lance Sabbe and Commissioner Gwen  
                       Atkinson-Williams       
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Johnson - meeting began at 6:00 p.m.  
INVOCATION: Mayor Johnson 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Recited in unison by all in attendance. 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1.   Adoption September 4, 2024, Regular Scheduled Meeting Agenda. 
      Commissioner Sabbe made a motion to approve the above-subject agenda; seconded by Mayor    
      Pro Tem Harris.  Motion passed unanimously.   
PUBLIC COMMENT - There was no one scheduled to address the commission. 
RECOGNITION(S), PRESENTATION(S), & AWARD(S) 
2.   Proclamation Presentation to Daniela Rodriguez and Eduardo Delgado Recognizing the  
      Month of September as National Hispanic Heritage Month.   
      Proclamation accepted with gratitude.  
3.   Proclamation Presentation to Brittany Cleveland Recognizing September 14, 2024, as City of  
      Brunswick Community Wellness Day.   
      Proclamation accepted with gratitude. 
4.   Plaque Presentation to Thomas “Tommy” Dixon for His Retirement with Code Enforcement    
      After 26 Years of Service and Gregory Post for His Retirement with the Brunswick Police    
      Department After 33 Years of Service.  (J. Hunter & J. Bergquist)   
       Plaques presented were accepted with gratitude. 
PUBLIC HEARING(S) – LAND USE 
5.   Petition No. 24-02; from Michael Torras, Atlantic Southeast Enterprises Owner, Petitioning to        
      Rezone 1 Torras Landing from Basic Industrial to Mixed-Use City Core Historic District. (J.  
      Hunter) 
      Planning, Development, and Codes Director John Hunter gave a presentation on the  
      above-referenced rezoning petition.  He reported that city staff and the Planning and Appeals  
      Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request. 
      Following questions and discussion from the commission: 
      Mayor Johnson opened the floor for anyone to speak in favor or opposition of the above-request  
      for Rezoning.  
      The following individuals addressed the commission: 
 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


2 
 

1) Michael Torras, Atlantic Southeast Enterprise, owner, responded to questions from the 
commission. 

2) Julie Martin, 8 Hanover Square      In Favor 
3) Mary Helen Turner, 917 Egmont Street     In Favor  

      Commissioner Sabbe made a motion to approve the above-referenced rezoning petition, with the  
      conditions recommended by the Planning and Appeals Commission. 
      Motion failed due to lack of a second. 
      Mayor Pro Tem Harris made a motion to table the above-referenced item until September 18,  
      2024 commission meeting; seconded by Commissioner Atkinson-Williams.  Motion passed by a  
      vote of 4 to 1, with Commissioner Sabbe opposing. 
ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL 
6.   Consider Approval of August 21, 2024, Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any  
       necessary charges.) (N. Atkinson)  
      Commissioner Rolle moved to approve the above-referenced minutes; seconded by Mayor Pro 
      Tem Harris.  Motion passed unanimously. 
7.   Consider Approval of Georgia Outdoor Stewardship Program Grant Resolution to Support Grant  
      Application.  (J. Hunter)   
      Commissioner Atkinson-Williams moved to approve the above-referenced agreement; seconded 
      by Commissioner Rolle.  Motion passed unanimously. 
8.   Consider Approval of Public Works Surplus Vehicles and Equipment.  (G. Alberson)   
      Commissioner Rolle moved to approve Public Works surplus vehicles and equipment list;  
      seconded by Commissioner Atkinson-Williams.  Motion passed unanimously. 
9.   Consider Approval of Georgia Environmental Protection Division Grant Extension Agreement.   
      (G.  Alberson)   
      Commissioner Atkinson-Williams moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the above-referenced  
      agreement; seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harris.  Motion passed unanimously. 
10. Consider Approval of Contract with Curb & Gutters Professionals Inc. for Permeable Pavement  
      Construction at Fire Station #1 and Goodyear Park.  (G. Alberson)  
      Commissioner Atkinson moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the above-referenced contract  
      with Curb and Gutter Professionals in the amount of $296,600; seconded by Commissioner Rolle.   
      Motion passed unanimously 
POINT OF PRIVILEGE 
Commissioner Atkinson Williams requested an update regarding the Permitting Process and an 
update from Economic Development Department. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Harris made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Commissioner Rolle. Motion passed 
unanimously. 

MEETING ADJOURNED – meeting adjourned at 7:29 p.m. 

 
        /s/Cosby H. Johnson   
        Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor  
Attest: /s/ Naomi D. Atkinson 
            Naomi D. Atkinson 
            City Clerk 



  

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2024 

 AT 5:00 P.M.  
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 
 
PRESENT:    Honorable Mayor Cosby Johnson, Mayor Pro Tem Felicia Harris ~ attended  

virtually, Commissioner Kendra Rolle, Commissioner Lance Sabbe and 
Commissioner Gwen Atkinson-Williams       

CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Johnson - meeting began at 5:00 p.m.  
INVOCATION: Mayor Johnson 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Recited in unison by all in attendance. 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1.   Adoption September 9, 2024, Special Called Meeting Agenda. 
      Commissioner Sabbe made a motion to approve the above-subject agenda; seconded by Mayor    
      Pro Tem Harris.  Motion passed unanimously 
POINT OF PRIVLAGE 
Mayor Johnson stated the purpose of the special called meeting is not a public hearing, but to give 
staff the opportunity to present their opinions of Petition No. 24-02. 
ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL 
2.    Petition No. 24-02; from Michael Torras, Atlantic Southeast Enterprises Owner, Petitioning to   
       Rezone 1 Torras Landing from Basic Industrial to Mixed-Use City Core Historic District. (J.   
       Hunter) 
       Planning, Development, and Codes Director Hunter gave an overview of Petition No. 24.02,  
       following the presentation, Mayor Johnson opened the floor for questions by the Commission.   
       Having none, Mayor Johnson asked 1) What is the actual timeline for the development; and 2)  
       What safeguards are in place to ensure the fasade included in the petition will look as presented.  
       Director Hunter went over the timeline and explained the fasade requirements the petitioner must   
       follow. 
 
       Following Director Hunter’s response, Mayor Pro Tem Harris asked why the initial planned area   
       is not the starting point of the development. Director Hunter stated he could not speak for the  
       petitioner but gave potential rational behind the petitioners’ decision. Following Director   
       Hunter’s response, no further questions were asked. 
 
       Commissioner Atkinson-Williams moved to approve the rezoning petition No. 24-02 to  
       MUCCH (Mixed-Use City Core District) without any variances, but to include the approval for  
       the Conditional Use as outlined in item D and the limitation to Golf Carts as outlined in item F  

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


2 
 

       per the recommendations of the Planning and Appeals Commission; seconded by Commissioner  
       Rolle. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
       Commissioner Rolle made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Commissioner Atkinson-Williams.  
       Motion passed unanimously. 

MEETING ADJOURNED – meeting adjourned at 5:23 p.m. 

 
        /s/Cosby H. Johnson   
        Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor  
Attest: /s/ Devone J. Williams 
            Devone J. Williams 
            Assistant City Clerk 
















































	9.18.24 Agenda
	Encl. 1 - 9.4.24 reg and 9.9 sc minutes
	Encl. 2 - Financial Reports as of July 31
	Encl. 3 - GDOT Transit App. Resolution
	Encl. 4 -  Easement with GA Port Auth.

